
__________________________________________________________ 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING PACKET
__________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Board Chair –Tom Herrin, Secretary – Kim Olive,  

Commissioner – Craig Coppock, Commissioner – Wes McMahan & 
Commissioner-Trish Frady  

December 20, 2023 @ 3:30 PM 
Conference Room 1 & 2 or Join Zoom Meeting: 

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/84778800798 
Meeting ID: 847 7880 0798 

One tap mobile:+12532050468,,84778800798# 
Dial: +1 253 205 0468 

__________________________________________________________

Pg 1 Board Packet

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/84778800798


TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Agenda  

Executive Session 

Department Spotlight 

Board Committee Reports 

Consent Agenda 

Old Business 

New Business 

Superintendent 

Pg 2 Board Packet



LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
REGULAR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 

December 20, 2023 at 3:30 p.m. 
Conference Room 1 & 2 or via ZOOM 

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/84778800798 
Meeting ID: 847 7880 0798 

One tap mobile:+12532050468,,84778800798# 
Dial: +1 253 205 0468 

Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

Vision Statement 
To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 

AGENDA PAGE TIME 
Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Excused/Unexcused Absences 
Reading of the Mission & Vision Statement 
Approval or Amendment of Agenda 
Conflicts of Interest  

3:30 pm 

Oath of Office (Action) 
• Assumption of Office-Van Anderson

o Oath administered by Jennifer Smith, Notary.

3:35 pm 

Comments and Remarks 
• Commissioners
• Audience

3:45 pm 

Executive Session- RCW 70.41.200 
• Medical Privileging-Chief of Staff Dr. Travis Podbilski & Medical Staff Coordinator

Barb Goble
• Quality Improvement Oversight Report-Commissioner Coppock & CNO/CQO

BarbaraVan Duren/QMRC Manager Julie Johnson

6 3:50 pm 

3:55 pm 

Department Spotlight 
• Deferred to January 2024.

Board Committee Reports 
• Hospital Foundation Report-Committee Chair-Secretary Olive/Foundation Manager

Jessica Scogin
8 4:00 pm 

• Finance Committee Report- Committee Chair-Commissioner Coppock 12 4:05 pm 
Consent Agenda (Action) 

• Approval of Minutes:
o November 13, 2023, Special Board Meeting
o November 15, 2023, Regular Board Meeting
o November 22, 2023, Finance Committee Meeting

18 
20 
27 

4:10 pm 

Pg 3 Board Packet

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/84778800798


o November 27, 2023, Special Board Meeting
o December 13, 2023, QIO Committee Meeting

31 
33 

• Warrants & EFTs in the amount of $3,677,730.69 dated November 2023 37 
• 2024 Medical Staff Appointments

o DNV NIAHO MS.2 Accountability/Responsibility-Identifying Chief of Staff and
medical staff leadership assignments.

39 

Old Business 
• Board Self Evaluation

o To discuss as a Board the evaluations completed for 2023.
41 

4:15 pm 

New Business 
• 2024 Organization & Officers of the Board of Commissioners

o To establish 2024 committee assignments effective 01.01.24.  In January the
officers will be elected.

44 
4:30 pm 

• Board Policy & Procedure Review
o Code of Ethics (Marked as Revised)
o Annual CEO/Superintendent Evaluation
o Board Spending Authority
o Records Retention

45 
52 
54 
56 

4:40 pm 

• New Commissioner Orientation
o To present and discuss orientation in January 2024.

58 4:45 pm 

Superintendent Report 
• Board Educational Articles

60 
61 

4:55 pm 

Meeting Summary & Evaluation 5:10 pm 
Next Board Meeting Dates and Times 

• Regular Board Meeting-January 31, 2024 @ 3:30 PM (ZOOM & In Person)
Next Committee Meeting Dates and Times 

• Finance Committee Meeting-January 24, 2024 @ 12:00 PM (ZOOM)
Adjournment 5:15 pm 

Pg 4 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Pg 5 Board Packet



 

  
-notates files with items to note. 

 
CONFIDENTIAL: Arbor Health peer review and quality improvement information protected from 
 disclosure or discovery under RCW 70.41.200 and 4.24.250 
 

 

MEDICAL STAFF PRIVILEGING 

The below providers are requesting appointment to the Arbor Health Medical Staff. All files have 
been reviewed for Quality Data, active state license, any malpractice claims, current liability 
insurance, peer references, all hospital affiliations, work history, National Practitioner Data Bank 
reports, sanctions reports, Department of Health complaints, Washington State Patrol background 
check and have been reviewed by the credentialing and medical executive committees including the 
starred items below. The credentialing and medical executive committees have recommended the 
following for approval. 

REAPPOINTMENTS-11 

Arbor Health  
• Kevin McCurry, MD (Emergency Medicine Privileges) (Family Medicine Privileges) 

• Amy Nielsen, CRNA (Anesthesia Privileges) 

• Kevin Gurney, CRNA (Anesthesia Privileges) 

 

Radiology Consulting Privileges 
• Alice Josafat, MD (Radiology Consulting Privileges) 

• John McGowan, MD (Radiology Consulting Privileges) 

• Ross Ondersma, MD (Radiology Consulting Privileges) 

• Matthew Stein, MD (Radiology Consulting Privileges) 

 

Providence Health & Services (privileging by proxy) 
• James Jordan, MD (Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges) 

• Mimi Lee, MD (Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges) 

• James Wang, MD (Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges) 

 
PeaceHealth 
• Helen Kim, MD (Pathology Consulting Privileges) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 6 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Pg 7 Board Packet



Pg 8 Board Packet



Pg 9 Board Packet



 

 

Arbor Health Foundation evening meeting 
At Bonnie Justice’s home 

12-12-2023 
 1.      Call to order  0610 by Marc Fisher 

OUR MISSION: To raise funds and provide services that will support the viability 
and long-term goals of the Lewis County Hospital District No. 1. This includes, but 
is not limited to, taking a leadership role in maintaining and improving 
community connection and confidence in all aspects of the hospital’s health care 
system.   
 
Attendance, Bonnie Justice, Rhonda Krolzcyk, Jeannine Walker, Kip Henderson, 
Christine Brower, Katelin Forrest, Shannon Kelly, Louise Fisher, Robert Mach 
Amy Mach (Better half) Marc Fisher, Jessica Scoggins, Zach Riffe, Mya Riffee, 
Gwen Turner 
 

• EXCUSED ABSENCES:  Ann Marie Forsman, Paula Baker, Lynn Bishop, Lenee 
Langdon 
 
 

2.     Approval of Treasurer’s Report and November Minutes  
 Motion to approve Minutes and Treasurers report by Katelyn Forest  second by Shannon Kelly 
  
3.     Administrators Report- Robert Mach reported in patient census is down. Reviewing billing 
to be sure charging the most possible to insurance, assuring not charging less than insurance 
would allow.  ED Medical Director is retiring April 1, 2024. Dr. Bard is willing to take the ED 
Medical director position over.  An offer has been extended to a new physician, Dr. John Heinz. 
Wanting to relocate to be near daughter who is going to be in school in Seattle. Continuing to 
work to improve the orthopedic unit.  Working on a grant for funds to purchase satellite phones 
for the EMS partners. Thursday, watch Good Morning Seattle at noon on Channel 5  for an 
interview with one of the hospital’s doctors. Pomblowski?  Packwood clinic is breaking even 
and doing well. New policy implemented to allow a limited supply of antibiotics at the clinics to 
get patients started until they can get to the pharmacy. Starting to work with a new radiologist 
to be able to do diagnostic mammograms at AH again, hopefully starting the 1st of the year. 
New MRI will be installed in Summer –  a stand alone building will go in the place where the 
trailer is now.    
 
 
4.     Executive Directors Report:  
 

• Giftshop Christmas sale – made $2935 at the sale in two days.  

Pg 10 Board Packet



 

 

• Wellness week – color run maybe moved to September to avoid conflict with the 
Hamptons picnic. 

•  
 
 

5.     Old Business:  Arbor health Foundation memorial plaque ordered and the proof has been 
reviewed for spelling etc. 

Hospital support agreement – still working on this with some requirements the State is 
looking for.  
 Roots and wings for ultrasounds – Robert reported the machines should be financed 
after the 1st of the year. 
   
6.     New Business:  
 
7. Next Meeting: January 9th 
 
Good of the order please share.  
 

Pg 11 Board Packet



YTD Prior YTD

ASSETS 11/30/2023 11/30/2023

Current Assets $9,267,508 $9,921,060

Assets Whose Use is Limited $0 $0

Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) $9,755,512 $10,581,143

Other Assets $715,325 $739,909

Total Unrestricted Assets $19,738,345 $21,242,112

Restricted Assets $1,797,753 $2,423,279

Total Assets $21,536,098 $23,665,391

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities $3,727,548 $5,450,102

Long‐Term Debt $5,853,502 $6,737,927

Other Long‐Term Liabilities $0 $0

Total Liabilities $9,581,050 $12,188,029

Net Assets $11,955,048 $11,477,362

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $21,536,098 $23,665,391

ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

Gross Patient Revenues $4,714,644 $5,026,377 $53,008,237 $55,265,841

Discounts and allowances ($1,688,381) ($1,688,643) ($19,291,147) ($20,783,401)

Bad Dbt & Char C Write‐Offs ($154,957) ($66,196) ($1,373,838) ($787,825)

Net Patient Revenues $2,871,306 $3,271,538 $32,343,252 $33,694,615

Other Operating Revenues $78,384 $103,429 $857,522 $1,137,716

Total Operating Revenues $2,949,690 $3,374,967 $33,200,774 $34,832,331

Salaries & Benefits $2,338,085 $2,318,159 $24,628,395 $25,481,607

Purchased Serv $335,116 $404,835 $3,895,618 $4,475,678

Supply Expenses $208,143 $244,375 $2,714,511 $2,552,803

Other Operating Expenses $267,076 $262,439 $2,795,426 $3,048,110

Depreciation & Interest Exp. $154,274 $137,078 $1,726,795 $1,542,698

Total Expenses $3,302,694 $3,366,886 $35,760,745 $37,100,896

NET OPERATING SURPLUS ($353,004) $8,081 ($2,559,971) ($2,268,565)

Non‐Operating Revenue/(Exp) $88,898 $77,947 $1,279,729 $857,434

TOTAL  NET SURPLUS ($264,106) $86,028 ($1,280,242) ($1,411,131)

ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

Total Inpatient Admits 8 16 105 175

Average Length of Stay 5.40 3.00 4.50 3.00

Total Emergency Room Visits 391 467 4,999 5,133

Outpatient Visits 1,297 1,275 13,345   15,123

Total Surgeries 32 32 440 360

ARBOR HEALTH

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Fiscal Year Ending: 11/30/23

BALANCE SHEET

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES ‐ YTD

11/30/2023 YEAR TO DATE

KEY STATISTICS

11/30/2023 YEAR TO DATE

55 51 50 53 50 50 52 50 50 48 51
30

40

50

60

70

80

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Days in A/R

2023 Benchmark 2022

‐30%
‐25%
‐20%
‐15%
‐10%
‐5%
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Operating Income Margin

2023 2023B 2022

‐

48 46 53 50 55 52 56 56
40 42 39

0

50

100

150

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Days Cash on Hand
Excludes Funded Depreciation

2023 2023B 2022

76% 79%

64%

75%
68%

78% 78%

68%

80% 77% 79%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Comp as % of Net Oper 
Revenue

2023 2023B 2022

Pg 12 Board Packet



 All Morton General Hospital
Income Statement
November, 2023

Pr Yr MTD % Var MTD $ Var MTD Budget MTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD $ Var YTD % Var PY YR YTD

503,896 -50% (508,679) 1,011,898 503,218 Total Hospital IP Revenues 7,343,683 11,145,280 (3,801,597) -34.1 6,091,460

3,077,197 6% 211,566 3,444,375 3,655,942 Outpatient Revenues 39,933,031 37,864,152 2,068,880 5.5 35,695,099

458,946 -3% (14,620) 570,104 555,483 Clinic Revenues 5,731,523 6,256,410 (524,886) -8.4 4,770,485
4,040,038 -6% (311,733) 5,026,377 4,714,644 Total Gross Patient Revenues 53,008,237 55,265,841 (2,257,604) -4.1 46,557,043

(1,318,828) 0% (262) (1,688,643) (1,688,381) Contractual Allowances (19,291,147) (20,783,401) (1,492,254) 7.2 (15,394,884)

(89,056) 370% (77,486) (20,916) (98,402) Bad Debt (789,605) (222,177) (567,428) 255.4 (375,889)

(73,044) 25% (11,275) (45,280) (56,555) Charity Care (584,233) (565,648) (18,586) 3.3 (600,624)
(1,480,928) 5% (88,498) (1,754,839) (1,843,338) Total Deductions From Revenue (20,664,985) (21,571,226) 906,240 -4.2 (16,371,397)

2,559,110 -12% (400,232) 3,271,537 2,871,306 Net Patient Revenues 32,343,252 33,694,616 (1,351,364) -4.0 30,185,646

183,500 -24% (25,045) 103,429 78,384 Other Operating Revenue 857,522 1,137,716 (280,195) -24.6 1,144,416

2,742,610 -13% (425,277) 3,374,966 2,949,689 Total Operating Revenue 33,200,773 34,832,332 (1,631,559) -4.7 31,330,063

Operating Expenses

1,836,057 2% 44,037 1,924,993 1,880,955 Salaries 20,476,154 21,128,184 652,030 3.1 19,446,597

370,047 -16% (63,963) 393,167 457,130 Total Benefits 4,152,241 4,353,423 201,182 4.6 3,983,577

2,206,104 -1% (19,926) 2,318,159 2,338,085 Salaries And Benefits 24,628,395 25,481,607 853,212 3.3 23,430,174

147,481 10% 12,626 131,086 118,460 Professional Fees 1,407,593 1,515,130 107,537 7.1 1,492,349

280,283 15% 36,232 244,375 208,143 Supplies 2,714,511 2,552,803 (161,708) -6.3 2,422,557

410,010 17% 69,719 404,835 335,116 Total Purchased Services 3,895,618 4,475,678 580,060 13.0 4,056,400

59,907 -5% (2,618) 48,484 51,103 Utilities 449,278 500,734 51,456 10.3 510,259

26,718 -7% (2,229) 30,695 32,923 Insurance Expense 337,423 337,643 220 0.1 272,317

105,054 -11% (11,751) 108,089 119,840 Depreciation and Amortization 1,372,838 1,223,822 (149,016) -12.2 1,197,262

32,203 -19% (5,446) 28,989 34,434 Interest Expense 353,957 318,876 (35,081) -11.0 360,220

81,496 -24% (12,416) 52,175 64,591 Other Expense 601,131 694,602 93,471 13.5 582,180
3,349,257 2% 64,192 3,366,886 3,302,694 Total Operating Expenses 35,760,745 37,100,896 1,340,152 3.6 34,323,718

(606,647) -4469% (361,085) 8,080 (353,005) Income (Loss) From Operations (2,559,972) (2,268,565) (291,407) 12.8 (2,993,655)

153,283 -14% (10,950) 77,949 88,899 Non-Operating Revenue/Expense 1,279,730 857,434 (422,296) -49.3 1,626,007

(453,364) -407% (350,134) 86,028 (264,106) Net Gain (Loss) (1,280,242) (1,411,130) 130,888 -9.3 (1,367,648)

 Unaudited

Pg 13 Board Packet



 Lewis County Hospital District No. 1
Income Statement
November, 2023

C U R R E N T M O N T H Y E A R   T O   D A T E

Pr Yr Month % Var $ Var Budget Actual Actual Budget $ Var % Var Actual

503,896 -50% (508,679) 1,011,898 503,218 Inpatient Revenue 7,343,683 11,145,280 (3,801,597) -34% 6,091,460

3,077,197 6% 211,566 3,444,375 3,655,942 Outpatient Revenue 39,933,031 37,864,152 2,068,880 5% 35,695,099

458,946 -3% (14,620) 570,104 555,483 Clinic Revenue 5,731,523 6,256,410 (524,886) -8% 4,770,485

4,040,038 -6% (311,733) 5,026,377 4,714,644 Gross Patient Revenues 53,008,237 55,265,841 (2,257,604) -4% 46,557,043

1,318,828 0% 262 1,688,643 1,688,381 Contractual Allowances 19,324,539 20,783,401 1,458,862 7% 15,379,928

73,044 -25% (11,275) 45,280 56,555 Charity Care 584,233 565,648 (18,586) -3% 600,624

89,056 -370% (77,486) 20,916 98,402 Bad Debt 789,605 222,177 (567,428) -255% 375,889

1,480,928 -5% (88,498) 1,754,839 1,843,338 Deductions from Revenue 20,698,377 21,571,226 872,848 4% 16,356,441

2,559,110 -12% (400,232) 3,271,537 2,871,306 Net Patient Service Rev 32,309,860 33,694,616 (1,384,756) -4% 30,200,602
63.3% 6.4% 4.2% 65.1% 60.9% NPSR % 61.0% 61.0% 0.0% 0.0% 64.9%

183,500 -24% (25,045) 103,429 78,384 Other Operating Revenue 857,522 1,137,716 (280,195) -25% 1,144,416

2,742,610 -13% (425,277) 3,374,966 2,949,689 Net Operating Revenue 33,167,381 34,832,332 (1,664,951) -5% 31,345,019

Operating Expenses

1,836,057 2% 44,037 1,924,993 1,880,955 Salaries & Wages 20,476,154 21,128,184 652,030 3% 19,446,597

370,047 -16% (63,963) 393,167 457,130 Benefits 4,152,241 4,353,423 201,182 5% 3,983,577

147,481 10% 12,626 131,086 118,460 Professional Fees 1,407,593 1,515,130 107,537 7% 1,492,349

280,283 15% 36,232 244,375 208,143 Supplies 2,714,511 2,552,803 (161,708) -6% 2,422,557

410,010 17% 69,719 404,835 335,116 Purchase Services 3,895,618 4,475,678 580,060 13% 4,056,400

59,907 -5% (2,618) 48,484 51,103 Utilities 449,278 500,734 51,456 10% 510,259

26,718 -7% (2,229) 30,695 32,923 Insurance 337,423 337,643 220 0% 272,317

81,496 -24% (12,416) 52,175 64,591 Other Expenses 601,131 694,602 93,471 13% 582,180

3,212,000 3% 81,389 3,229,809 3,148,420 EBDITA Expenses 34,033,950 35,558,198 1,524,249 4% 32,766,235

(469,390) -237% (343,888) 145,157 (198,730) EBDITA (866,568) (725,866) (140,702) 19% (1,421,216)

-17.1% 256.6% 11.0% 4.3% -6.7% EBDITA % -2.6% -2.1% 0.5% -25.4% -4.5%

Capital Cost

105,054 -11% (11,751) 108,089 119,840 Depreciation 1,372,838 1,223,822 (149,016) -12% 1,197,262

32,203 -19% (5,446) 28,989 34,434 Interest Cost 353,957 318,876 (35,081) -11% 360,220

3,349,257 2% 64,192 3,366,886 3,302,694 Operating Expenses 35,760,745 37,100,896 1,340,152 4% 34,323,718

(606,647) -4469% (361,085) 8,080 (353,005) Operating Income / (Loss) (2,593,364) (2,268,565) (324,799) 14% (2,978,699)

-22.1% 0.2% -12.0% Operating Margin % -7.8% -6.5% -9.5%

0 0% 0 0 0 Mcare/Mcaid Pr Yr 33,392 0 (33,392) 0% (14,956)

Non Operating Activity

158,336 14% 11,788 81,737 93,524 Non-Op Revenue 1,331,099 899,105 431,994 48% 1,678,901

5,053 -22% (837) 3,788 4,626 Non-Op Expenses 51,369 41,670 (9,699) -23% 52,894

153,283 14% 10,950 77,949 88,899 Net Non Operating Activity 1,279,730 857,434 422,296 49% 1,626,007

(453,364) -407% (350,134) 86,028 (264,106) Net Income / (Loss) (1,280,242) (1,411,130) 130,888 -9% (1,367,648)

-16.5% 2.5% -9.0% Net Income Margin % -3.9% -4.1% -4.4%

 Unaudited

Pg 14 Board Packet



 Lewis County Public Hospital District No. 1
Balance Sheet

November, 2023 Prior-Year Incr/(Decr)

Current Month Prior-Month end From PrYr

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash 4,128,373$       4,477,568 5,055,656 (927,283)
Total Accounts Receivable 8,107,759 7,734,141 7,508,625 599,134
Reserve Allowances (3,947,177) (4,102,488) (3,362,569) (584,608)

Net Patient Accounts Receivable 4,160,582 3,631,654 4,146,056 14,527

Taxes Receivable 41,090 161,048 52,607 (11,517)
Estimated 3rd Party Receivables 263,159 263,159 (11,605) 274,764
Prepaid Expenses 343,756 385,183 324,031 19,724
Inventory 268,401 267,416 253,658 14,743
Funds in Trust 1,797,753 1,789,272 1,711,559 86,194
Other Current Assets 62,147 57,624 180,415 (118,268)

Total Current Assets 11,065,261 11,032,924 11,712,378 (647,116)
Property, Buildings and Equipment 35,035,722 34,977,405 34,963,861 71,861
Accumulated Depreciation (25,280,210) (25,185,274) (24,491,062) (789,148)

Net Property, Plant, & Equipment 9,755,512 9,792,131 10,472,799 (717,288)
Right-of-use assets 545,811 570,604 681,064 (135,254)
Other Assets 169,514 169,514 167,514 2,000

Total Assets 21,536,098$     21,565,174 23,033,755 (1,497,657)

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 732,642 825,913 697,151 35,491
Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities 944,412 702,423 1,312,233 (367,821)
Accrued Vacation 867,218 865,066 716,055 151,163
Third Party Cost Settlement 179,790 76,909 (69,226) 249,017
Interest Payable 133,628 106,889 0 133,628
Current Maturities - Debt 865,842 865,842 865,842 0
Other Payables 4,015 4,015 26,555 (22,540)

Current Liabilities 3,727,548 3,447,056 3,548,610 178,938
Total Notes Payable 808,412 833,875 1,086,048 (277,636)
Lease Liability 311,505 331,613 431,433 (119,928)
Net Bond Payable 4,733,585 4,733,475 4,732,375 1,211

Total Long Term Liabilities 5,853,503 5,898,964 6,249,856 (396,353)

Total Liabilities 9,581,050 9,346,020 9,798,466 (217,416)

General Fund Balance 13,235,289 13,235,289 13,235,289 0
Net Gain (Loss) (1,280,242) (1,016,136) 0 (1,280,242)

Fund Balance 11,955,048 12,219,154 13,235,289 (1,280,242)

Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 21,536,098$     21,565,174 23,033,755 (1,497,657)

Pg 15 Board Packet



Arbor Health
2023 Forecast 

2023          

Budget

Jan‐Novemberr  

Actual Dec Budget

2023        

Forecast

Inpatient Revenues 12,161,942 7,343,683 1,013,495 8,357,178
Outpatient Revenues 41,422,451 39,933,031 3,451,871 43,384,902
Clinic Revenues 6,827,441 5,731,523 568,953 6,300,476
Gross patient Revenue 60,411,834 53,008,237 5,034,320 58,042,557

Deductions from Revenues 23,258,558 20,664,985 1,938,213 22,603,198
39% 39% 39% 39%

Net Patient Revenues 37,153,276 32,343,252 3,096,106 35,439,358

Other Operating Revenue 1,166,500 857,522 97,208 954,730

Total Operating Revenues 38,319,776 33,200,774 3,193,315 36,394,089

Operating Expenses

Salaries & Wages 22,836,207 20,476,154 1,903,017 22,379,171

Benefits 4,747,575 4,152,241 395,631 4,547,872

Professional Fees 1,640,308 1,407,593 136,692 1,544,285

Supplies 2,784,239 2,714,511 232,020 2,946,531

Purchase Services 4,997,842 3,895,618 416,487 4,312,105

Utilities 562,930 449,278 46,911 496,189

Insurance 368,338 337,423 30,695 368,118

Other Expenses 763,509 601,131 63,626 664,757

Depreciation 1,233,070 1,372,838 102,756 1,475,594

Interest Cost 347,866 353,957 28,989 382,946

Operating Expenses 40,281,884 35,760,744 3,356,824 39,117,568

Operating Income (1,962,108) (2,559,970) (163,509) (2,723,479)
‐5% ‐8% ‐5% ‐7%

Non Operating Activity

Non‐Operating Income 814,378 1,279,728 67,865 1,347,593

(1,147,730) (1,280,242) (95,644) (1,375,886)

 06/Jan/2023 11:23:30 AMPg 16 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  

Pg 17 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
SPECIAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 

November 13, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
Conference Rooms 1 & 2 or via ZOOM 

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/82554545348 
Meeting ID: 825 5454 5348 

One tap mobile: +12532050468,,82554545348# 
Dial: +1 253 205 0468 US 

 
 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Excused/Unexcused 
Absences 
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 
 
 

Board Chair Herrin called the 
meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioners present:  
☒ Tom Herrin, Board Chair  
☒ Kim Olive, Secretary 
☒ Wes McMahan 
☒ Craig Coppock 
☒ Trish Frady 
 
Others present:  
☒ Rob Mach, Superintendent 
☒ Shana Garcia, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Jim Frey, IT Director 
☒ Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 
☒ Van Anderson, Community 
Member 
☒ Clint Scogin, Controller 

     

Conflicts of Interest Board Chair Herrin asked the Board 
to state any conflicts of interest with 
today’s agenda.   

None noted.   

Reading of the Notice 
of the Special 
Meeting  

Board Chair Herrin read the special 
board meeting notice. 

   

New Business CFO Cornwell presented the 2024 
budget while reflecting on 2023’s 

   

Pg 18 Board Packet

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/82554545348


AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

Present the 2024 
Budget (RCW 
70.44.060 (6)) 

• To present 
the proposed 
2024 
operating 
budget 

experience year to date.  Managers 
were included in this process when 
discussing current volume 
experience and where growth 
opportunities are projected.  The 
percentage of change on the budget 
is conservative.  CFO Cornwell 
noted in recent reporting from 
WSHA, the District continues to be 
comparable to other hospital 
financial experiences across the 
state.   
 
CFO Cornwell shared the capital 
asset list where departments 
identified equipment at or near end 
of life.  The equipment highlighted 
will need to be replaced to continue 
business but not planning to do until 
required given the budget 
presented. 

Public Comment No comment.    
• Resolution-

23-22-
Adopting the 
2024 Budget 
(Action) 

o To 
adopt 
the 
budg
et. 

 Commissioner 
Coppock made a 
motion to approve 
Resolution 23-22 as 
presented, Secretary 
Olive seconded and 
the motion passed 
unanimously.   
 
Resolution will be 
sent for electronic 
signatures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11.15.23 

Adjournment Commissioner Coppock moved and 
Secretary Olive seconded to 
adjourned at 6:30 p.m.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 

   

 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Kim Olive, Secretary          Date 

Pg 19 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
REGULAR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 

 November 15, 2023, at 3:30 p.m. 
Conference Room 1 & 2 and via ZOOM 

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/83730587850 
Meeting ID: 837 3058 7850 

One tap mobile: +12532050468,,83730587850# 
Dial: +1 253 205 0468 US 

 
 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Unexcused/Excused 
Absences  
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 
 
 

Board Chair Herrin called the 
meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 
 
Commissioners present:  
☒ Tom Herrin, Board Chair  
☒ Kim Olive, Secretary 
☒ Wes McMahan 
☒ Craig Coppock  
☒ Trish Frady 
 
Others present:  
☒ Robert Mach, Superintendent 
☒ Shana Garcia, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Barbara Van Duren, CNO/CQO 
☒ Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 
☒ Shannon Kelly, CHRO 
☒ Julie Taylor, Ancillary Services 
Director 
☐ Dr. Kevin McCurry, CMO 
☒ Matthew Lindstrom, CFMO 
☒ Spencer Hargett, Compliance 
Officer 
☒ Janice Cramer, Patient Access 
Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Pg 20 Board Packet

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/83730587850


AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

☒ Barb Goble, Medical Staff 
Coordinator 
☒ Dr. Travis Podbilski, Chief of 
Staff 
☒ Clint Scogin, Controller 
☒ Julie Johnson, Quality Manager 
☒ Jessica Scogin, Foundation 
Manager 
☒ Van Anderson, Community 
Member 
☒ Diane Markham, Marketing and 
Communication Manager 
☒ Roxann Morris, EVS Supervisor 
 
Board Chair Herrin noted the chat 
function has been disabled and the 
meeting will not be recorded.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Approval or 
Amendment of 
Agenda 

 
 

Commissioner 
McMahan made a 
motion to approve the 
agenda.  
Commissioner 
Coppock seconded 
and the motion 
passed unanimously. 

  

Conflicts of Interest Board Chair Herrin asked the 
attendees to state any conflicts of 
interest with today’s agenda.   

None noted.   

Comments and 
Remarks 

Commissioners: Secretary Olive 
commended the Arbor Health 
Foundation on great work, as well 
as a special thank you to 
Foundation Manager Scogin.  
Commissioner McMahan thanked 
the Finance Committee for their 
hard work and taking time to 
explain meeting materials.  
Commissioner McMahan 
commented on the recent election 
and excitement on the interest in the 
hospital, such a great example of a 
democratic process on the closeness 
in votes. 
 
Audience: Van Anderson proposed 
a couple edits to the Code of Ethics, 
as well as having no conflicts with 
the proposed 2024 Regular Board 
Meeting Schedule. 

 
 

  

Pg 21 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

Executive Session- 
RCW 70.41.200 

Board Chair Herrin announced 
going into executive session at 3:40 
p.m. for five minutes to discuss 
RCW 70.41.200-Medical 
Privileging.  The Board returned to 
open session at 3:45 p.m.  Board 
Chair Herrin noted no decisions 
were made in Executive Session. 
 
Reappointments: 

Arbor Health 

1. Esther Park-Hwang, MD 
(Gynecology Privileges) 

Telestroke/Neurology Consulting 
Privileges 

1. Biggya Sapkota, MD 
(Telestrok/Neurology 
Consulting Privileges)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner 
Coppock made a 
motion to approve the 
Medical Privileging 
as presented, 
Secretary Olive 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 

  

Department Spotlight 
• EVS 

EVS Supervisor Morris highlighted 
the following during the EVS 
spotlight: 

1. Longevity of team 
members and service to 
Arbor Health (AH). 

2. Three employees are Chest 
Certified, and three more 
employees are in process of 
becoming certified. 

3. Auditing rooms with an 
invisible pen to identify 
areas to improve training.  
Goal of 95% compliance 
and trending at 87% year to 
date. 

4.  Equipment needs include 
new washers and dryers 
which are on the capital list 
for 2024. 

The Board commended the 
department on attaining 
certifications, as well as keeping the 
hospital and clinics in great shape. 

     

Board Committee 
Reports 

• Hospital 
Foundation 
Report 

Secretary Olive shared the AH 
Foundation allocated $20,000 to the 
Rapid Care Clinic from the recent 
auction dinner.  It’s that time of 
year again, the Foundation is giving 

   

Pg 22 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

$30 gift cards to District employees 
for their service and dedication to 
AH.  The Gift Shop Holiday Sale is 
November 28th & 29th from 10 am 
to 6 pm.  The Foundation agreed to 
fund the new ultrasound machine 
with the $70,000 received through 
the Roots & Wings fund.  Lastly, 
the Foundation is creating a formal 
process for District employees to 
use when requesting funding from 
the Foundation.  The form will be 
located in Lucidoc. 

• Compliance 
Committee 
Report 

Commissioner McMahan’s 
compliance update included 
identifying the top priorities for 
2024 and where to focus resources 
for the year. 

   

Consent Agenda  Board Chair Herrin announced the 
consent agenda items for 
consideration of approval: 

1. Approval of Minutes 
a. October 25, 2023, 

Regular Board 
Meeting 

b. November 1, 2023, 
Compliance 
Committee 
Meeting 

2. Warrants & EFTs in the 
amount of $3,944,541.84 
dated October 2023 

Commissioner 
Coppock made a 
motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda and 
Commissioner Frady 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Minutes, Warrants 
and Resolutions will 
be sent for electronic 
signatures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11.17.23 
 
 

Old Business     
New Business 

• Board Self 
Evaluation 

Board Chair Herrin presented the 
annual board self-evaluation.  
Commissioner McMahan proposed 
rewording number 2 and removing 
number 9 as not applicable. 
 
The Board supported the proposed 
edits.  Board Chair requested the 
Board completes and returns by 
December 1, 2023 to discuss at the 
December 20, 2023 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

Edit evaluation by 
rewording number 2 
and removing number 
9.  Send evaluation 
electronically to the 
Board. 
 
Complete and return 
to EA Garcia. 

Executive 
Assistant Garcia 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of 
Commissioners 
 
 

11.17.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12.01.23 

• RES 23-23-
Approving 
the Capital 
Purchase of 

CFO Cornwell shared the Lab 
needs a new CBC Analyzer which 
was acknowledged in the capital list 
for 2023.  This is a critical piece of 
a equipment and the CBC is the 

Commissioner 
McMahan made a 
motion to approve 
Resolution 23-23 and 
Secretary Olive 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Pg 23 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

Lab CBC 
Analyzer  

most commonly ordered lab test.  
Physicians heavily rely on it and the 
current one is end of life.  Ancillary 
Services Director Taylor noted 80% 
of market are purchasing through 
Sysmex, as the current company 
does not have a model that they 
currently sell.   
 
Superintendent Mach shared 
normally this would have been 
presented to Finance Committee 
first; however, due to the timing of 
meetings and the end of the fiscal 
period upon us. 
 
The Board supports the purchase 
and staying up to date with quality 
equipment.  

seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Resolution will be 
sent for electronic 
signatures. 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 

 
 
 
 
11.17.23 

• Board Policy 
and 
Procedure 
Review  

Board Chair Herrin presented the 
following policies/procedures for 
review and/or revision: 

1. Code of Ethics-Marked a 
Revised. 

 
2. Conflict of Policies-Marked 

as Reviewed. 
 

3. Board Self Evaluation-
Marked as Reviewed. 

Edit Code of Ethics. 
 
Commissioner 
McMahan made a 
motion to approve the 
two P & P’s and 
Commissioner 
Coppock 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Mark Conflict of 
Policies & Board Self 
Evaluation as 
Reviewed in Lucidoc. 

Superintendent 
Mach 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 

12.20.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11.17.23 

• Property Tax 
Levy Options 

CFO Cornwell shared the District 
has received documentation from 
the Lewis County and calculated the 
options which will be presented at 
the Public Hearing on November 27, 
2023.  CFO Cornwell will present 
three options, all of which will 
reduce taxes.  Reminder while this is 
additional monies for the District it 
will not impact the budget 
significantly, as it is less than 2% of 
operating budget. 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Pg 24 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

• 2024 Board 
Meeting 
Schedule 

Board Chair Herrin presented the 
2024 schedule with the last 
Wednesday of every month, as well 
as the proposed schedule with a 
couple changes. 
 
The Board supported the proposed 
schedule for 2024. 

Commissioner 
McMahan made a 
motion to approve the 
proposed 2024 board 
meeting schedule and 
Commissioner 
Coppock 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Publish 2024 
schedule as a legal 
and AH website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12.31.23 

Superintendent 
Report 

Superintendent Mach highlighted 
the memo in the packet and added 
the following updates: 

1. Open Enrollment coming 
soon for employees.  Using 
new administrator SOLV 
and employees will 
experience benefits 
enhancements to the plan. 

2. Completed DNV Stroke 
Survey on 10.31.23.  Couple 
findings, one fixed already 
and other is providing post 
education to the community. 

3. Post Swingbed department 
spotlight, the Hospital now 
has access to EPIC for 
referrals, big win! 

4. Another success story is our 
newest marketing is 
reaching the market, which 
includes WA Orthopedics 
and they plan to send 
patients our way! 

5. The new CT is still in the 
works, as it is in plan review 
with DOH.  DOH is 
reporting a backlog of 90 
day, so the team is 
monitoring and waiting. 

   

Meeting Summary 
& Evaluation 

Superintendent Mach highlighted 
the meeting which included 
decisions made and action items. 
 
Secretary Olive noted staying on 
schedule, communicating well and 
cannot believe next meeting will be 

 
 

 
 

 

Pg 25 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

7 | P a g e  
 

the last.  Commissioner Frady noted 
good input at today’s meeting.  
Commissioner Coppock noted a 
good meeting.  Commissioner 
McMahan noted a good board, team, 
discussions and all-around good 
news.  The District is going places.  
Board Chair Herrin appreciated the 
honesty and contributions from the 
public.  Superintendent Mach agreed 
it was a great meeting, moving 
forward which is an exciting spot. 

Adjournment Board Chair Herrin noted a typo in 
the next committee meeting times, 
QIO is at 7 am. 

Commissioner 
Coppock moved and 
Secretary Olive 
seconded to adjourn 
the meeting at 5:15 
p.m.  The motion 
passed unanimously.     

  

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Kim Olive, Secretary          Date 

Pg 26 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
Finance Committee Meeting 

November 22, 2023, at 12:00 p.m. 
Via Zoom 

 
 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Excused/ Unexcused 
Absences 
Conflicts of Interest 
 
 

Commissioner Coppock called the 
meeting to order via Zoom at 12:00 
p.m. 
 
Commissioner(s) Present in Person 
or via Zoom: 
☒ Craig Coppock, Commissioner 
☒ Wes McMahan, Commissioner 
 
Committee Member(s) Present in 
Person or via Zoom: 
☒ Shana Garcia, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 
☒ Robert Mach, Superintendent 
☒ Marc Fisher, Community 
Member 
☐ Clint Scogin, Controller 
☒ Sherry Sofich, Revenue Cycle 
Director 
☒ Barbara van Duren, CNO/CQO 
☒ Julie Taylor, Ancillary Services 
Director 
☒ Matthew Lindstrom, CFMO 

Excused: Clint Scogin 
(PTO)  
 
Unexcused Absences: 
None 
 

  

Approval or 
Amendment of 
Agenda 

 Commissioner 
McMahan made a 
motion to approve the 
agenda and 
Community Member 
Fisher. seconded.  The 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 27 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

motion passed 
unanimously. 

Conflicts of Interest Commissioner Coppock asked the 
Committee to state any conflicts of 
interest with today’s agenda.  

Commissioner 
Coppock shared his 
son works for Lewis 
County Assessor’s 
Office as a Sales 
Analyst. 

  

Consent Agenda Commissioner Coppock announced 
the following in consent agenda up 
for approval: 

1. Review of Finance Minutes 
–October 18, 2023 

2. Revenue Cycle 
3. Board Oversight Activities 

Commissioner 
McMahan made a 
motion to approve the 
consent agenda and 
Superintendent Mach 
seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 

  

Old Business 
• Financial 

Department 
Spotlight-
EVS 

CFO Cornwell shared a financial 
spotlight for EVS.  The budget 
variances included an increase in 
salaries due to staffing shortages, as 
well as an increase in purchase 
services due to outsourcing laundry 
when the boiler was down.  Capital 
includes new washers and dryers, 
which is in the 5-year plan and will 
be replaced at the time of need. 

   

• CFO 
Financial 
Review 

CFO Cornwell shared the following 
highlights: 

1. October was again another 
difficult month with 
Inpatient Admits, Inpatient 
Days and Swing bed were 
all below budget.  ED, 
Surgery and Clinic Visits 
were all above budget, so 
those continue to be bright 
spots. 

2. Days Cash on Hand is 42 
which is six days less than 
where we started the 
calendar year.  Anticipating 
we may recover cash from 
health insurance accrual 
and should the District 
receive ERC monies that 
could make a big impact to 
the financials. 

3. Income Statement shows a 
YTD variance of 
$1,945,871 below budget in 
Gross Revenue.  Continue 

Add Income Statement 
with EBITA reference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Controller 
Scogin 

12.20.23 

Pg 28 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

to monitor contractual 
allowances and bad debt is 
much higher than expected.  
Thes are patients who 
cannot pay and elect not to 
apply for charity care.  A 
reflection of this year’s 
economy and financial 
state.  Benefits were 
expensive again but still 
less than budget for the 
year.  Total operating 
expenses remain below 
budget YTD.  Experiencing 
a net loss of $1,016,136 
which YTD is still ahead of 
budget. 

Community Member Fisher 
requested EBITA Margin be added 
back to Income Statement as 
reference.   

New Business 
• AH 

Retirement 
Fund 
Update 

CFO Cornwell highlighted that 
Arbor Health continues to 
participate in the Rural 
Collaborative’s 403b Retirement 
Plan.  CFO Cornwell participates in 
this committee on a quarterly basis.  
The plan continues to show a 
positive experience.  Good news, 
there are potentially two more 
hospitals that are interested in 
joining which would increase the 
collective balance on the total plan 
assets which would decrease 
administration fees for plan 
participants.   

   

• 2023 Self-
Insured 
Health 
Insurance 
Quarter 3 
Overview 

CFO Cornwell shared the District 
switched to SOLV a new employee 
benefits advisor.  As mentioned, 
benefit expenses were higher due to 
more claims in September and 
October.  Presented a Benefits 
Summary showing the current plan 
and the recommended plan that the 
District has elected to do in 2024.  
Hopeful for more improvements in 
2025. 

   

• Property 
Tax Levy 
Options 

CFO Cornwell presented the 
District’s draft levy options.  The 
District only has the M & O levy.  

Write bond levy thank 
you to the District. 

Superintendent 
Mach 

12.31.23 

Pg 29 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

Administration is recommending 
4.16% increase which is the highest 
lawful levy amount, plus banked 
capacity and an allowance for 
continued revisions to property 
valuations and/or utilities. 
 
CFO Cornwell will present the levy 
to the public at the Special Board 
Meeting on November 27, 2023, for 
public comment.  The Board will 
need to decide how to move 
forward.   
 
The budget and levy documentation 
must be submitted to Lewis County 
by November 30, 2023. 
 
Commissioner Coppock requested 
the District write a public thank for 
the bond levy upon bond debt paid 
off end of 2022. 

Meeting Summary 
& Evaluation 

CFO Cornwell highlighted the 
decisions made and action items that 
need to be taken to the entire board 
for approval.   
 
Community Member Fisher 
requested an updated on the 340b 
funds at the next meeting.  CFO 
Cornwell noted a company was 
hired to review this program and 
some significant changes have been 
made to improve the data issues 
identified. 

Provide update on 
340b program. 
 

CFO Cornwell 12.20.23 

Adjournment Commissioner McMahan adjourned 
the meeting at 12:53 pm.   

   

 

Pg 30 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
SPECIAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 

November 27, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
Conference Rooms 1 & 2 or via ZOOM 

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/81780667280 
Meeting ID: 817 8066 7280 

One tap mobile: +12532050468,,81780667280# 
Dial: +1 253 205 0468 US 

 
 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Excused/Unexcused 
Absences 
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 
 
 

Board Chair Herrin called the 
meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioners present:  
☒ Tom Herrin, Board Chair  
☒ Kim Olive, Secretary 
☒ Wes McMahan 
☒ Craig Coppock 
☒ Trish Frady 
 
Others present:  
☒ Rob Mach, Superintendent 
☒ Shana Garcia, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Buddy Rose, Writer for The 
Journal 
☒ Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 
☒ Van Anderson, Community 
Member 

     

Conflicts of Interest Board Chair Herrin asked the Board 
to state any conflicts of interest with 
today’s agenda.   

None noted.   

Reading of the Notice 
of the Special 
Meeting  

Board Chair Herrin read the special 
board meeting notice. 

   

New Business CFO Cornwell presented the 
Maintenance and Operation (M & 

   

Pg 31 Board Packet

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/81780667280


AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

• Property Tax 
Levy 

o To 
discu
ss 
settin
g the 
prop
osed 
tax 
levy. 

O) levy and the District and ratify 
an increase up to 4.16% which is 
the highest lawful levy amount plus 
bank capacity and continued 
revision to property valuations 
and/or utilities.  The M & O levy 
supports 1.76% of operating 
expenses.  Even with this increase, 
the average household’s property 
taxes will be reduced.  The Board 
supports approving the increase 
given the financial state of the 
District. 

Public Comment Van Anderson inquired which 
amount was included in the 
approved budget.  CFO Cornwell 
confirmed the conservative amount 
was included which is 1% over the 
actual levy amount.  This will add 
approximately $20,000 more to the 
budget. 

   

• Resolution-
23-24-
Approving 
the 2024 
Proposed Tax 
Levy 

o To 
appr
ove 
the 
tax 
levy. 

 Commissioner 
Coppock made a 
motion to approve 
Resolution 23-24 as 
presented, Secretary 
Olive seconded and 
the motion passed 
unanimously.   
 
Resolution will be 
sent for electronic 
signatures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11.28.23 

Adjournment Commissioner Coppock moved and 
Secretary Olive seconded to 
adjourned at 6:326p.m.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 

   

 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Kim Olive, Secretary          Date 

Pg 32 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
QUALITY IMPROVEMENT OVERSIGHT MEETING 

December 13, 2023 at 7:00 a.m. 
ZOOM 

 
 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Unexcused/Excused 
Absences 
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 
 
 

Commissioner Coppock called the 
meeting to order via Zoom at 7:03 
a.m. 
 
Commissioner(s) Present in Person 
or via Zoom: 
☒ Craig Coppock, Commissioner 
☐ Kim Olive, Secretary 
☒ Tom Herrin, Board Chair 
 
Committee Member(s) Present in 
Person or via Zoom: 
☒ Julie Johnson, Quality Manager 
☒ Barbara Van Duren, CNO/CQO 
☒ Rob Mach, Superintendent 
☒ Shana Garcia, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 
☒ Matthew Lindstrom, CFMO 
☒ Dr. Kevin McCurry, CMO 
☐ Dr. Travis Podbilski, Chief of 
Staff  
☒ Shannon Kelly, CHRO  
☒ Julie Taylor, Ancillary Services 
Director 
☒ Nicholas Tyler, Pharmacist 
☒ Kelly Hauser, Patient Care 
Services Director 
☒ Gary Preston, MA PhD CIC 
FSHEA 

Excused: Secretary 
Olive 
 
Unexcused Absences: 
Dr. Travis Podbilski, 
Chief of Staff  
 
 
 
 

  

Pg 33 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

☒ Spencer Hargett, Compliance 
Officer 
☒ Barbara Goble, Medical Staff 
Coordinator 
☒ Lynn Bishop, Community 
Member 

Approval or 
Amendment of 
Agenda 

 Board Chair Herrin 
made a motion to 
approve the agenda 
and Superintendent 
Mach seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously.   

  

Conflicts of Interest Commissioner Coppock asked the 
Committee to state any conflicts of 
interest with today’s agenda. 

The Committee noted 
none. 

  

Committee Reports 
• Medical 

Executive 
Committee 
(MEC) 

• QAPI 
Operational 
Workgroup  

• Environment 
of Care 
(EOC) 

Medical Staff Coordinator Goble 
noted appointment summary from 
September, October & November.  
Other highlights included 
modifying service chief roles, Chief 
of Staff will not longer serve on 
subcommittees and MEC will 
absorb the Medical Staff Policy 
Review starting in 2024. 
 
QMRC Manager Johnson share 
October meeting highlights 
included regulatory updates, 
department specific PI updates 
which included explaining the PI’s 
trending in red and corrections 
being discussed moving forward 
and lastly reviewing PRC Patient 
Satisfaction Dashboards.  In 2024, 
the workgroup is going to be 
restructured into QAPI Pods lead by 
the six leadership members and 
reporting departments.  The goal is 
to reinvent the process to continue 
PI’s, but to retire ones not longer 
necessary, review targets not being 
met, as well as refocus on areas that 
need improvements in a smaller 
group format.  The Pods will report 
summaries to Quality Manager 
Johnson to report up to QIO.  
 
CFMO Lindstrom noted highlights 
of the EOC Meeting specifically 

  
 

 

Pg 34 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

noting the Medical Management 
Plan from MMS had an unusually 
high number for could not locate 
list and since have identified a 
reporting error, finalizing the 
emergency management committee 
members list and the EOC rounds 
are being completed and emailed to 
managers for corrective action. 

Consent Agenda  
• Approval of 

Minutes 

Approval of the following: 
1. September 13, 2023, 

Quality Improvement 
Oversight (QIO) 
Committee Meeting 

2. LifeCenter NW Q3 Report  
 

CHRO Kelly made a 
motion to approve the 
agenda and Board 
Chair Herrin 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously.   

  

Old Business 
• 091323 

Action Item 
Follow Up 

CNO/CQO Van Duren shared 
during Senior Management Review 
the Leadership team determined 
Standard Workflows is not a 
requirement of managers, as we are 
already capturing workflows 
through policies, procedures, 
checklists and protocols.  Managers 
are still encouraged to complete if 
there is value and time well spent.   
 
Superintendent Mach and 
CNO/CQO Van Duren attended the 
annual WSHA conference.  
Highlights included a great speaker 
from Nordstrom department store 
who reiterated the importance of 
being friendly and being there for 
our customers, in our case patients 
because they may come back to 
Arbor Health or recommend us.  
Also, a breakout session was on 
rural health care and the Board 
interactions with the community, as 
well as how to advocate for your 
hospital.  The second day for a 
CNO Roundtable mostly focused on 
the new hospital staffing plan 
effective January 1, 2024. 

   

New Business 
• QIO 

Dashboard 
Summary 

QMRC Manager Johnson presented 
the dashboard which included 
seeing great improvements on an 
infection control metric on 
successfully cleaning and the work 

Update legend to 
include info on 
denominators being 
lowers patient 
volumes. 

QMRC Manager 
Johnson 

02.14.24 

Pg 35 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

being completed for Antibiotic 
Therapy usage year to date by 
Pharmacy.  The quality dashboards 
were reviewed identifying areas for 
QAPI Pods may have opportunities 
to review if a PI may be needed.  
Remember, some metrics include 
low patient numbers, so outcomes 
may have larger swings.  

 

• Regulatory & 
Accreditation 
Report 

QMRC Manager Johnson presented 
non-conformity findings and recent 
updates.  Retired DOH Life Safety 
findings due to hitting compliance 
targets. 

   

• QIO 
Education 

QMRC Manager Johnson presented 
the standards on the Quality 
Management System (QMS) where 
QM 1 and QM 7 impacts the QIO 
Committee.  The goal is to gradually 
introduce the standards to 
understand what and the why as to 
what is being focused on 
operationally. 

   

• Annual 
Quality Risk 
Management 
(QM 7) 

QMRC Manager Johnson noted in 
QM 7 the hospital shall define the 
mechanism and rationale used to 
determine the selection of high-
risk/priority indicators or process to 
be evaluated.  Examples were 
provided for discussion and to rank 
the risk.   
 
The Committee agreed to postpone 
the activity to the next QIO Meeting. 

Complete the Annual 
Quality Risk 
Management tool at 
the next meeting. 

QMRC Manager 
Johnson 

02.14.23 

• Annual 
Quality Legal 
Review 

QMRC Manager Johnson presented 
the legal review for the Hospital for 
2021-2023.   

   

Meeting Summary & 
Evaluation 

QMRC Manager Johnson provided a 
summary. 

   

Adjournment Commissioner Coppock adjourned 
the meeting at 8:07 a.m.  The 
motion passed unanimously.   

   

 

Pg 36 Board Packet



WARRANT & EFT LISTING NO.        2023-11 
 
RECORD OF CLAIMS ALLOWED BY THE 
BOARD OF LEWIS COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The following vouchers have been audited, 
charged to the proper account, and are within the 
budget appropriation. 
 
                CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify, under 
penalty of perjury, that the materials have been 
furnished, as described herein, and that the claim 
is a just, due and unpaid obligation against 
LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
and that I am authorized to authenticate and 
certify said claim. 
 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 

We, the undersigned Lewis County Hospital 
District No. 1 Commissioners, do hereby certify 
that the merchandise or services hereinafter 
specified has been received and that total 
Warrants and EFT’s are approved for payment 
in the amount of  
 
$3,677,730.69 this   20th day 
 
of December 2023 
 
 
 
 
Board Chair, Tom Herrin   
 
 
 
Secretary, Kim Olive  
 
 
 
Commissioner, Wes McMahan     
 
 
 
Commissioner, Craig Coppock  
 
 
 
Commissioner, Patricia Frady

 
 
SEE WARRANT & EFT REGISTER in the amount of $3,677,730.69 dated November 1, 2023 – 
November 30, 2023. 

Pg 37 Board Packet



Routine A/P Runs

Warrant No. Date  Amount Description
132021 - 132076 2-Nov-2023              35,553.14 CHECK RUN
132077 - 132122 3-Nov-2023             341,138.86 CHECK RUN
132123 - 132136 6-Nov-2023              52,337.43 CHECK RUN
132137 - 132187 10-Nov-2023             203,854.58 CHECK RUN
132188 - 132204 13-Nov-2023             187,123.17 CHECK RUN
132205 - 132206 1-Nov-2023              21,772.57 CHECK RUN
132207 - 132208 2-Nov-2023              30,515.86 CHECK RUN

132209 7-Nov-2023               2,211.75 CHECK RUN
132210 9-Nov-2023               1,000.00 CHECK RUN
132211 14-Nov-2023                 196.50 CHECK RUN
132212 15-Nov-2023              54,278.06 CHECK RUN

132213 - 132231 20-Nov-2023             888,081.38 CHECK RUN
132232 - 132281 17-Nov-2023             231,656.25 CHECK RUN
132282 - 132347 28-Nov-2023             178,180.86 CHECK RUN
132348 - 132375 28-Nov-2023           1,031,291.89 CHECK RUN
132376 - 132377 28-Nov-2023               8,730.84 CHECK RUN

132378 17-Nov-2023               3,706.31 CHECK RUN
132379 21-Nov-2023                  92.76 CHECK RUN

132380 - 132381 28-Nov-2023                 459.14 CHECK RUN
132382 28-Nov-2023              36,324.93 CHECK RUN
132383 30-Nov-2023                 981.00 CHECK RUN
132384 24-Nov-2023                 392.81 CHECK RUN
132385 15-Nov-2023              10,660.57 CHECK RUN

3,320,540.66$  

Error Corrections - in Check Register Order

Warrant No. Date Voided  Amount Description
132069 27-Nov-23                 (71.00) VOID CHECK

 $            (71.00)

3,320,611.66$  

Eft Date  Amount Description
4778 6-Nov-2023                 948.00 TPSC
1212 10-Nov-2023             185,232.12 IRS
4779 14-Nov-2023               2,463.63 TPSC
4780 20-Nov-2023                 379.05 TPSC
1213 24-Nov-2023             167,034.36 IRS
4781 24-Nov-2023                 132.00 TPSC
1118 16-Nov-2023                 688.00 NORIDIAN MEDICARE
4782 28-Nov-2023                 312.87 TPSC

357,190.03$     

3,677,730.69$  
TOTAL CHECKS, EFT'S, 

&TRANSFERS 

Nov-23

ARBOR HEALTH WARRANT REGISTER

Total - Check Runs

TOTAL - VOIDED CHECKS

UMPQUA BANK CHECKS, 

EFT'S,   LESS VOIDS

TOTAL EFTS AT SECURITY 

STATE BANK

Pg 38 Board Packet



Chief of Staff Victoria Acosta, DO  
Secretary Don Allison, MD
Immediate Past Chief of Staff Travis Podbilski, DO

Surgery/Specialties Charles T. Anderson, MD
Hospitalist Don Allison, MD

Emergency Department Jeff Ford, MD
Sleep Center Jakdej Nikomborirak, MD
Respiratory Therapy & Pulmonary Rehabilitation Anthony Fritz, MD

Pathology
Helen Kim, MD-PeaceHealth Medical 
Group

Anesthesia Amy Nielsen, CRNA
Rehabilitation Services Travis Podbilski, DO
Imaging Ross Parker, MD-Radia, Inc.
Rural Health Clinics Travis Podbilski, MD

Pharmacy & Therapeutics

Kevin McCurry, MD
Edward Junn, MD
Quoc Ho, MD (Alternate)
Nicholas tyler-Hashemi, Pharmacist

Utilization Quality Review/QI & Medical Records

Charles T. Anderson, MD
Fabiola Puga, MD
Garrett Peresko, DPM (Alternate)

Ethics Committee

Charles T. Anderson, MD
Kevin McCurry, MD
Don Allison, MD

Bylaws Committee Jeff Ford, MD
Tissue & Transfusion Peace Health

Infection Control
Charles T. Anderson, MD
Amy Nielsen, CRNA (Alternate)

Joint Conference See Bylaws

Credentialing (3-year rotation)

Charles Anderson, MD (2nd Year)
Jeff Ford, MD (1st Year)
Quoc Ho, MD (1st Year)

Swing Bed
Don Allison, MD
Mark Hansen, MD

Lucidoc Committee-Clinical Documentation Review

Fabiola Puga, MD
Jason Whitney, ARNP
Devin Spera, MD
Anthony Fritz, MD

Medical Executive Committee (MEC)

2024 Medical Staff Appointments

Service Chiefs

Medical Directors

Medical Staff Committee Assignments

Pg 39 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS 

Pg 40 Board Packet



Board of Directors Board Evaluation  
Rankings go from 1=Low/Disagree up to 5=High/Agree 

 Board Activity 1 2 3 4 5 Results 
1 The Board operates under a set of policies, procedures, and 

guidelines with which all members are familiar. 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.8 

2 The Board Subcommittee(s) report to the Board on all actions 
taken. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

3 There are standing committees of the Board that meet regularly 
and report to the Board. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

4 Board meetings are well attended, with near full turnout at each 
meeting. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

5 Each board member has at least one committee assignment. ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 
6 Nomination and appointment of board members follow clearly 

established procedures using known criteria. 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.8 

7 Newly elected board members receive adequate orientation to 
their role and what is expected of them. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.2 

8 Each board meeting includes an opportunity for learning about the 
District’s activities. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

9 The Board fully understands and is supportive of the strategic 
planning process. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.8 

10 Board members receive meeting agendas and supporting materials 
in time for adequate advance review. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

11 The Board adequately oversees the financial performance and 
fiduciary accountability of the organization. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.6 

12 The Board receives regular financial updates and takes necessary 
steps to ensure the operations of the District are sound. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.8 

13 The Board regularly reviews and evaluates the performance of the 
Superintendent/CEO. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.6 

14 The Board actively engages in discussion around significant issues. ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 
15 The Board Chair effectively and appropriately leads and facilitates 

the Board Meetings and the policy and governance work of the 
Board. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

 

 Mission and Purpose 1 2 3 4 5 Results 
1 Statements of the District’s mission are well understood and 

supported by the Board. 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 5 

2 Board meeting presentations and discussions consistently 
references the District’s mission statement. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

3 The Board reviews the District’s performance in carrying out the 
stated mission on a regular basis. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

 

 

 

Pg 41 Board Packet



 Governance/Partnership Alignment 1 2 3 4 5 Results 
1 The Board exercises its governance role ensuring that the District 

supports and upholds the mission statement, core values, and 
vision statement. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.8 

2 The Board periodically reviews, and is familiar with, the District’s 
partnership; AWPHD, WSHA, TRC, etc. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 3.8 

3 The Board reviews its own performance and measures its own 
effectiveness in governance work. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

4 The Board is actively engaged in the board development processes. ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.4 
 

 Board Organization 1 2 3 4 5 Results 
1 Information provided by staff is adequate to ensure effective board 

governance and decision making. 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 4.8 

2 The Committee structure logically addresses the District’s areas of 
operation. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

3 All committees have adequate agendas and minutes for each 
meeting. 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 

4 All committees address issues of substance. ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 5 
 

Please make any other comments about the work and effectiveness of the Board: 
We have grown this past year, our ability to have in depth conversations about a topic and progress 
forward has made us more effective as a board.   
 
Suggest 1 yearly scheduled ‘executive session’ for board review-discussion of CEO performance.  This will 
eliminate any personal need to ask the chairman to schedule such a meeting and make it a regular process.  
A January meeting time would allow a year review of strategic measure progress as well.   

 

Pg 42 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

Pg 43 Board Packet



 

  12/15/2023 
 

2024 Organization & Officers of the Board of Commissioners 
Effective Date: January 1, 2024 

Board Leadership Board Representation 
Board Chair  
Board Secretary  

Committee Administration Representation Committee 
Chair 

Board 
Representation 

Finance Superintendent & CFO   
QI Oversight Superintendent & CNO/CQO   
Governance Superintendent   
Plant Planning Superintendent & CFO   
Strategic Planning Superintendent Board of Commissioners 
Compliance Committee Superintendent & Compliance Officer   

Other Board 
Representation 

Board Representation 

Foundation  
State Representation  

 

 

2024 Organization & Officers of the Board of Commissioners 
Effective Date: February 22, 2023 

Board Leadership Board Representation 
Board Chair Tom Herrin 
Board Secretary Kim Olive 

Committee Administration Representation Committee 
Chair 

Board 
Representation 

Finance Superintendent & CFO Craig Coppock Wes McMahan 
QI Oversight Superintendent & CNO/CQO Kim Olive Craig Coppock 
Governance Superintendent Tom Herrin Kim Olive 
Plant Planning Superintendent & CFO Craig Coppock Trish Frady 
Strategic Planning Superintendent Board of Commissioners 
Compliance Committee Superintendent & Compliance Officer Wes McMahan Trish Frady 

Other Board 
Representation 

Board Representation 

Foundation Kim Olive 
State Representation Wes McMahan 

 

 

 

Pg 44 Board Packet



Pg 45 Board Packet



Pg 46 Board Packet



Pg 47 Board Packet



Pg 48 Board Packet



Pg 49 Board Packet



Pg 50 Board Packet



Pg 51 Board Packet



Pg 52 Board Packet



Pg 53 Board Packet



Pg 54 Board Packet



Pg 55 Board Packet



Pg 56 Board Packet



Pg 57 Board Packet



 

 

 

To:  New Board of Commissioners 
From: Rob Mach, Superintendent 
Date: December 20, 2023 
Subject: New Commissioner Orientation 
 

Commissioners should complete this checklist within 90 days after taking the Oath of Office. 

Onsite Orientation Checklist: Completed: 
Take the Oath of Office either: 

• Up to 10 days prior to the scheduled date of assuming office; 
• At the last regular meeting of the governing body of the District 

☐ 

January 12, 2024 (Tentatively)  
Review Benefits w/Human Resources ☐ 
Receive and Review Technology w/IT ☐ 
Meet & Greet w/Board Chair & Superintendent 

• Discuss Commissioner Buddy 
• Tour of the Hospital 

☐ 

Orientate w/Executive Assistant: 
• Access to Lucidoc: https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/login.pl? 
• Review Board of Commissioner’s Resource Manual 
• Locate board meeting materials. 

☐ 

Orientate w/Compliance Officer-Spencer Hargett-Compliance Committee ☐ 
Orientate w/CFO-Cheryl Cornwell-Finance Committee ☐ 
Orientate w/CNO/CQO-Barbara Van Duren-QIO Committee ☐ 
Offsite Orientation Checklist: Completed: 
Complete OPMA & PRA training: 

• MRSC - PRA and OPMA E-Learning Courses 
• Open Government Training | Washington State 

(Training must be completed within 90 days after taking their oath of office.) 

 
☐ 
☐ 

Complete PDC filing: https://www.pdc.wa.gov/learn/file-online ☐ 
Review Association of Washington Public Hospital Districts (AWPHD) Legal Manual. 

• Explore website: Governance Education | Association of Washington Public 
Hospital Districts (awphd.org) 

☐ 

Review Washington State Hospital Association website and educational resources. 
• Explore website: Governance & Executive Education - Washington State 

Hospital Association (wsha.org) 

☐ 

Review the Rural Collaborative website. 
• Explore website: The Rural Collaborative 

☐ 

Locate Public Hospital District (PHD) RCW’s: 
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=70.44 

☐ 

 

Pg 58 Board Packet

https://mrsc.org/training/pra-opma-e-learning
https://www.atg.wa.gov/open-government-training
https://www.awphd.org/governance-education/
https://www.awphd.org/governance-education/
https://www.wsha.org/events-resources/governance-education/
https://www.wsha.org/events-resources/governance-education/
https://ruralcollaborative.com/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

Pg 59 Board Packet



 

 

 

To:  Board of Commissioners 
From: Rob Mach, Superintendent 
Date: December 20, 2023 
Subject: Superintendent Report 
 

• Started optimization work with Cerner EMR so physicians can utilize system more efficiently. 

• Continued discussions with possible family practice physician. 

• Started having monthly Lunch with CEO meetings with new employees. 

• Starting to work on review of all physician agreements and updating salary and quality metrics. 

• Working on contracts with the 2 other hospitals that we contract with providing Compliance Officer. 

• No update on WSHA lawsuit regarding geographic restrictions on charity care. 

• I have been appointed to the WSHA Rural Hospital Committee Board 

• We did get Case manager access to Providence Epic for Swing bed referrals. 

• Working on affiliation agreement with Tacoma Community Hospital for x-ray students. 

• Submitted paperwork to designate Packwood clinic an RHC. 

• Working on “Just Culture” training for managers and staff in 2024. 

• Eliminating OR call in January. 

• Dr. Ford retiring in April, Replacement ED medical director identified. 

• Working with Grant writer at The Rural Collaborative to secure funding for satellite phones for East Lewis 
County EMS. 

Pg 60 Board Packet



Pg 61 Board Packet



Pg 62 Board Packet



Pg 63 Board Packet



Pg 64 Board Packet



Pg 65 Board Packet



Pg 66 Board Packet



Pg 67 Board Packet



Pg 68 Board Packet


	Appointment Request Form 12.20.2023.pdf
	Medical staff privileging
	Reappointments-11
	Arbor Health
	Radiology Consulting Privileges
	Providence Health & Services (privileging by proxy)





